
Civic Offices
Merrial Street
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire
ST5 2AG

Contacting the Council:
Switchboard 01782 717717 . Text 07800 140048 
E-mail webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  .  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Britain in Bloom: 
National Winner 2005
Silver Gilt Medal 2009 

Regional Winner
2003, 2004, 2008, 

2009, 2010
Gold Award Winner 

2002 - 2010

Contacting the Council:
Switchboard 01782 717717  .  Fax 01782 711032  .  DX 20959  .  Text 07800 140048 
E-mail webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk  .  www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Date of meeting Tuesday, 12th December, 2017

Time 7.00 pm

Venue Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, Merrial Street, 
Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 2AG

Contact Jayne Briscoe 2250

Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny 
Committee

AGENDA

PART 1– OPEN AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES  
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

To receive Declarations of Interest from Members on items included on this agenda

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6)
4 DEMENTIA FRIENDLY SWIMMING - UPDATE  
5 WORK PLAN  (Pages 7 - 10)

To discuss and update the work plans to reflect current scrutiny topics

6 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
Any member of the public wishing to submit a question must serve two clear days’ notice, 
in writing, of any such question to the Borough Council.

7 URGENT BUSINESS  
To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972.

8 DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

Members: Councillors Allport, Bailey (Vice-Chair), Miss J Cooper, Eagles, Frankish, 
Heesom, Reddish, Stubbs, J Tagg, G Williams (Chair) and Winfield

Public Document Pack



‘Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training / development  requirements from the 
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the 
attention of the Committee Clerk at the close of the meeting’

FIELD_TITLE



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee - 09/10/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
1

ACTIVE AND COHESIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Monday, 9th October, 2017
Time of Commencement: 7.00 pm

Present:- Councillor Mrs Gillian Williams – in the 
Chair

Councillors Miss J Cooper, Frankish, J Tagg, 
Winfield and Woolley

Officers Jayne Briscoe - Scrutiny Officer and Rob 
Foster - Head of Leisure and Cultural 
Services

Apologies Councillor(s) Eagles and Heesom

1. APOLOGIES 

An apology was received from Councillor Eagles and from Councillor Heesom who 
was represented by Councillor Woolley.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest stated.

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 August 2017 be 
agreed as a correct record.

Matters arising

Quarterly meeting with the CCG

Notes of the meeting held on 4 October with Anna Collins, Head of Communications 
and Engagement and Lorna Clarson, Clinical Director Partnership and Engagement 
at the CCG together with the Chair of this Committee and the Chair of the Health and 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee Councillor Wright were circulated. 

The main themes being:

1. Pre-Consultation Events, based on the 5 community hospital areas would take 
place up to the end of December to look at what health services need to be 
provided and from where.

2. A Care Navigation programme was being developed to ensure that people 
who contacted their GP were sign posted to the right services. 

3. Community Conversation aimed at giving people the opportunity to talk about 
how health services for older people are commissioned. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee - 09/10/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
2

4. Medicines Matter campaign to reduce the amount of prescribed but unused 
medicines. 

5. One Governance Structure (Board) is to be adopted for all six CCG’s resulting 
in efficiency savings. 

6. Social Prescribing - NHS Staff trained to undertake enhanced roles in active 
signposting and supporting community referrals to local non clinical services.

7. Research at Keele University to support decision making on the treatments 
and services commissioned for patients based on evidence about what works 
best. Non clinical services such as the programmes at Jubilee2 were identified 
for further discussions regarding the Borough Councils involvement in 
establishing a robust evidence base for both current and planned 
programmes. 

Dementia Friendly Swimming

The Scrutiny Officer reported on the decision of Cabinet (26/11/17) to approve the 
development of an appropriate action plan to implement Dementia Friendly 
Swimming at Jubilee2, within existing resources and in partnership with appropriate 
local partners.

4. CONSULTATION - LEISURE PROVISION IN KIDSGROVE 

The Head of Leisure and Cultural Services submitted a report which presented the 
outcomes of the consultation undertaken from 17 July to 14 August 2017 on interim 
sports activities provision in the Kidsgrove area. The results of which will inform 
future plans and activities of the Council and its sport and Active Lifestyles Service 
following the closure of Kidsgrove Sports Centre. 

The role of this Committee was to consider the outcomes of the consultation exercise 
and to make recommendations to Cabinet on sports activities to be delivered to the 
local community.

A total of 238 responses were received with 97 per cent seeing the provision of 
swimming as important/very important, more than half said they would use a gym, 
family leisure events and group exercise/dance.  Fewer than half said they would use 
street games, park games, beginners running or walking netball/football/cricket. 95 
per cent would not be prepared to travel more than 20 minutes to access services.  
The full report was appended to the agenda.

A member asked whether adequate provision had been made for children to access 
swimming lessons at an alternative venue.  It was difficult to fully answer, as although 

Page 4



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee - 09/10/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
3

other facilities had increased provision for children’s swimming lessons Staffordshire 
County Council were responsible for the provision of school swimming lessons.

Members considered the distribution of the questionnaire and commented that the 
number of respondents was disappointingly low.

Mr Ray Williams from the Kidsgrove Leisure Centre Action Group was present at the 
meeting and he commented that the results were very similar to the information that 
the group had collected. This information would be shared with the Head of Leisure 
and Cultural Services.

Agreed That, to maintain an affordable local fitness offer, the Active and 
Cohesive Scrutiny Committee recommends to Cabinet the establishment of an 
interim dual use gym and fitness studio in partnership with a suitable education 
provider.  This venue should be suitable for and capable of accommodating family 
leisure events.

 

5. SUPPORT FOR STOKE ON TRENT CITY COUNCIL BID FOR UK CITY OF 
CULTURE 2021 

In response to a request from a member the Regeneration and Economic 
Development Manager and Head of Leisure and Cultural Services submitted a 
briefing report on the actions the Borough Council is taking to support the Stoke on 
Trent City Council bid to be nominated as the UK City of Culture 2021.  

Events outlined included The Philip Astley programme for 2018 which will be 
enhanced by working with Appetite to create more large scale artworks and in 
particular improvements to the appearance to the town centre subways. 

Members made a plea for the Borough to remain active in supporting the bid, 
reinforcing the strong inter-relationships between the Borough and the City from an 
economic, social and environmental perspective.

6. WORK PLAN 

Members considered the work programme and it was agreed that the next meeting 
would be held on 12 December when the Cabinet decision in respect of Kidsgrove 
Leisure Centre would be known.

7. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

With the exception of Mr R Williams there were no members of the public present at 
the meeting

8. URGENT BUSINESS 

There was no Urgent Business.

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting would be held on Tuesday 12 December.

Page 5



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee - 09/10/17

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 
4

COUNCILLOR MRS GILLIAN WILLIAMS
Chair

Meeting concluded at 8.00 pm

Page 6



 

 

Chair: Councillor Mrs Williams
Vice Chair: Councillor Bailey

Portfolio Holder(s) covering the Committee’s remit:
Councillor Amelia Rout (Leisure and Culture)

Councillor Elizabeth Shenton (Policy, People and Partnerships)
Councillor John Williams (Town Centres, Property & Business)

This document sets out the work programme of the Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee 2017/18
The Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee may wish to scrutinize the following topic areas which fall under the remit of
the Committee:

 Arts Development
 Britain in Bloom
 Cemeteries & Crematorium
 Children and Young People
 Safeguarding Board, Children’s Centre District Management Board/Community Learning
 Community Recreation
 Cultural Development
 Health Improvement
 Leisure Facilities
 Museum

ACTIVE AND COHESIVE 
COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

Members:  Allport, Bailey, Julie Cooper, 
Eagles, Frankish, Heesom, Stubbs, J. 
Tagg, G. Williams, Winfield, Woolley

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5



 

 

 Sports Development

Elected Members review their Work Programme from time to time and may change it to respond to requests and issues which are seen 
to be a priority.

Our work results in recommendations for the Borough Council and other organisations and helps to make improvements for the benefit 
of our communities.  Councillor Gill Williams, Chair of Active and Cohesive Communities Scrutiny Committee

If you would like to know more about our work programme please get in touch with Jayne Briscoe, Democratic Services 
Officer on 
01782 742250 or jayne.briscoe@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

P
age 8

mailto:jayne.briscoe@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk


Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Date of meeting Item Reason for Undertaking the Scrutiny Cabinet Response/Outcomes
6th March 2017 Dementia Friendly Swimming (Joint 

Meeting)
To progress Dementia Friendly 
Initiatives within the Borough

Cabinet approved (26-11-17)

3 August 2017 Review of work plan and scrutiny 
topics for 2017/2018

To discuss the work plan and 
potential topics that members would 
like to scrutinise during the 
forthcoming year

9 October 2017 Scrutiny of results from consultation 
exercise – Leisure Provision in 
Kidsgrove

To make recommendations to 
Cabinet based on the findings of the 
consultation

To maintain an affordable local 
fitness offer this Scrutiny Committee 
recommends to Cabinet the 
establishment of an interim dual use 
gym and fitness studio in partnership 
with a suitable educational provider. 
This venue should be suitable for 
and capable of accommodating 
family leisure events.

Investigate the barriers to the 
successful operation of the GP 
referral scheme at J2 – Joint meeting 
with Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee

A Corporate Priority  is a health and 
active community

Engage with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) 
regarding research at Keele 
University to support decision 
making on the treatments and 
services commissioned for patients 
based on evidence about what 
works best. Non clinical services 
such as the programmes at Jubilee2 
were identified for further 
discussions regarding the Borough 
Councils involvement in establishing 
a robust evidence base for both 
current and planned programmes.

A urgent  briefing on the actions that 
the Borough  is taking to support 
Stoke on Trent City Councils bid to 

Member request from Councillor 
Frankish

N/AP
age 9



Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

Classification: NULBC UNCLASSIFIED 

become City of Culture
12 December 2017 Report on decision of Cabinet 

regarding the provision of leisure 
facilities following the closure of 
Kidsgrove Leisure Centre

5 March 2018 To consider Stage 1 HLF Bid for 
Brampton Museum

Contributes to the corporate 
outcome  that cultural activity and 
participation in the arts will have 
increased

P
age 10


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 WORK PLAN
	word workplan Active for Jayne (2)


